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Memorandum 

AGENDA ITEM 8 

DATE:  3/30/2023 

TO:  Transportation Authority Board 

FROM:  Joe Castiglione – Deputy Director for Technology, Data & Analysis 

SUBJECT:  4/11/23 Board Meeting: Authorize the Executive Director to Enter into a Funding 

Agreement with the Metropolitan Transportation Commission for a Total Amount 

Not to Exceed $270,000 for San Francisco Travel Diary Survey Data Collection  

RECOMMENDATION  ☐ Information ☒ Action

• Authorize the Executive Director to enter a funding 
agreement with the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission (MTC) for $270,000 for San Francisco Travel 
Diary Survey data collection. 

• Authorize the Executive Director to negotiate agreement 
payment terms and non-material agreement terms and 
conditions. 

SUMMARY 

We are the lead for three efforts – the Transportation Demand 
Management (TDM) Market Analysis Study; the Transportation 
Sustainability Program (TSP) Evaluation Tool Design and 
Implementation project; and our San Francisco Congestion 
Management Agency activities – all of which require the use of 
household travel diary data. The budgets for each effort 
include funding for supplemental travel diary surveying as part 
of the MTC Bay Area Travel Survey (Survey) effort.  The Survey 
is a partnership between our agency, MTC and the Santa Clara 
Valley Transportation Authority to collect individual-level travel 
behavior data on a biannual basis. A total of $270,000 in 
funding will increase the number of survey responses 
collected by MTC in under-sampled areas of San Francisco. 
We will use the results of the data collection effort for analysis 
efforts in the TDM Travel Market Analysis Study and TSP 
Evaluation Tool project, to support SF-CHAMP travel demand 
forecasting model development and calibration, and to 
support the 2023 Congestion Management Program update. 
We expect data to be collected in Spring and Fall of 2023. 

☐ Fund Allocation 

☐ Fund Programming 

☐ Policy/Legislation 

☐ Plan/Study 

☐ Capital Project 
Oversight/Delivery 

☐ Budget/Finance 

☒ Contract/Agreement 

☐ Other: 
___________________ 
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BACKGROUND 

We are leading the TDM Travel Market Analysis Study (Study), which will identify travel 

markets that are best suited for TDM investments due to factors such as trip types, travel 

distance, transit effectiveness, land uses, or variation in transportation supply and network 

conditions.   The Study will identify travel markets where TDM programs are expected to best 

support travel needs and have the biggest opportunity to shift travel choices; develop an 

updated TDM toolbox; and establish evaluation guidelines for TDM projects that can inform 

prioritization and design of TDM strategies in the city. The Study will be funded by a Prop K 

appropriation of $406,000, anticipated to be approved at the March 21, 2023 Board meeting.  

We have also been leading the TSP Evaluation Tool Design and Implementation project, a 

multi-year effort to develop statistical models and a web-based tool to quantify the 

effectiveness of the TDM strategies included in San Francisco’s TDM Program in reducing 

vehicle miles traveled by promoting sustainable travel options.  The TSP Evaluation Tool 

Design and Implementation project is funded by a previously approved Prop K appropriation 

of $152,684.  

Finally, as the Congestion Management Agency for San Francisco County, we are responsible 

for maintaining a data base on traffic impacts for use in a countywide transportation computer 

model, and for preparing and adopting a biennial congestion management program.  

These three efforts, all of which require the use of household travel diary data, include a 

combined budget of $270,000 to augment planned data collection through the MTC 

Household Travel Diary Survey effort, a partnership between our agency, MTC, and the Santa 

Clara Valley Transportation Authority.  This effort will collect household-level travel behavior 

data on a biannual basis, and the additional survey responses collected through this effort will 

help ensure a sufficient sample is collected to develop travel profiles for four San Francisco 

super districts and citywide, to provide detailed information on traveler responses to different 

TDM strategies, to support travel demand model updates including the use of emerging 

modes, and to report on changes mode usage in San Francisco.  

DISCUSSION  

Data Collection. In 2018 and 2019, we partnered with MTC to collect individual travel 

behavior data through the joint “Bay Area Travel Survey” effort. Both agencies plan to initiate 

another travel diary survey effort in 2023 to collect updated travel information for the region 

and San Francisco to support the three aforementioned efforts. The TDM Travel Market 

Analysis project budget includes $130,000 to supplement this effort to assemble 

demographic and travel diary survey data for San Francisco residents.  The data will support 

an analysis to understand TDM propensity—where TDM investments will have the greatest 

impact—based on demographics, land uses, and transportation supply / network conditions.  

The TSP Evaluation Tool Design and Implementation project includes $40,000 to collect data 

required to implement the tool. The 2023 Congestion Management Program update and 

travel demand model project budgets are complemented by $100,000 in funding from the   

Traffic Congestion Mitigation Tax.  Data collection will occur in the nine-county San Francisco 
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Bay Area in spring and fall of 2023.  MTC is leading this regional effort, and has selected and 

procured the services of a consultant team to complete the work after an extensive survey 

instrument evaluation process. 

The data collection effort will involve traditional travel diary surveying in order to gather 

complete travel information on all trips made by travelers including origin, destination, mode, 

purpose, party size, travel times, travel costs, traveler demographics, and trip path details in 

order to support transferable model estimation. The data will be collected for all members of 

a household and will be designed to ensure that disadvantaged and hard-to-reach 

populations are adequately captured in the sample of people surveyed.  Surveys will 

implemented in English, Spanish and Chinese. 

This year’s survey will augment the traditional travel diary survey to collect some stated 

preference-type information from travelers. This may include information on induced travel, 

mode shift, or sensitivities to price and travel times. For example, the survey will collect data 

from TNC users about what travel models they might have used were a TNC unavailable or 

unaffordable and may collect information on preferences regarding use of autonomous 

vehicles. 

Participant data will be collected for a one-week period. We anticipate that the sample size 

target for the planned data collection in San Francisco will be approximately 1,350 – 1,590 

surveys. The data collection scope of work is included in Attachment 1. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT   

Budget for services identified in this agreement will be provided by Prop K appropriations 

and Traffic Congestion Mitigation Tax administration funds.  The adopted Fiscal Year 2022/23 

Budget and Work Program includes funding for a portion of the data collection.  Sufficient 

funds will be included in future budgets to cover the remaining cost of the agreement. 

CAC POSITION  

The Community Advisory Committee considered this item at its March 29, 2023 meeting and 

unanimously adopted a motion of support for the staff position. 

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS 

Attachment 1 – Scope of Work 

Attachment 2 - Resolution 
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RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A FUNDING AGREEMENT WITH THE METROPOLITAN 

TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $270,000 FOR SAN 

FRANCISCO TRAVEL DIARY SURVEY DATA COLLECTION AND AUTHORIZING THE 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO NEGOTIATE AGREEMENT PAYMENT TERMS AND NON-

MATERIAL AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

WHEREAS, As the Congestion Management Agency for San Francisco County, the 

Transportation Authority is responsible for maintaining a data base on traffic impacts for use 

in a countywide transportation computer model; and 

WHEREAS, The Transportation Authority is leading the Travel Demand Management 

(TDM) Market Analysis Study, which will identify travel markets that are best suited for TDM 

investments due to factors such as trip types, travel distance, transit effectiveness, land uses, 

or variation in transportation supply and network conditions; and 

WHEREAS, The Transportation Authority is leading the Transportation Sustainability 

Program (TSP) Evaluation Tool Design and Implementation project, a multi-year effort to 

develop statistical models and a web-based tool to quantify the effectiveness of the TDM 

strategies included in San Francisco’s TDM Program in reducing vehicle miles traveled by 

promoting sustainable travel options; and 

WHEREAS, All of these efforts require information about San Francisco and regional 

residents travel behaviors as collected in travel diary surveys; and 

WHEREAS, The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) is leading a regional 

travel diary survey data collection effort in spring and autumn 2023 in partnership with the 

Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority and the Transportation Authority; and 

WHEREAS, Transportation Authority staff recommends contributing $270,000 toward 

the effort to increase the number of survey responses collected by MTC in under-sampled 

areas of San Francisco, providing a more robust data set; and 

WHEREAS, The Transportation Authority’s contribution toward MTC’s travel diary 

survey data collection services will be funded from a combination of Prop L and TNC Tax 

funds; and 

WHEREAS, At its March 29, 2023 meeting, the Community Advisory Committee was 

briefed on and unanimously adopted a motion of support for the staff recommendation; now, 

Attachment 2 
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therefore, be it 

RESOLVED, That Executive Director is authorized to enter a funding agreement with 

the MTC for $270,000 for San Francisco Travel Diary Survey data collection; and be it further 

RESOLVED, That the Executive Director is hereby authorized to negotiate agreement 

payment terms and non-material agreement terms and conditions; and be it further 

RESOLVED, That for the purposes of this resolution, “non-material” shall mean 

contract terms and conditions other than provisions related to the overall contract amount, 

terms of payment, and general scope of services; and be it further 

RESOLVED, That notwithstanding the foregoing and any rule or policy of the 

Transportation Authority to the contrary, the Executive Director is expressly authorized to 

execute agreements and amendments to agreements that do not cause the total agreement 

value, as approved herein, to be exceeded and that do not expand the general scope of 

services. 

  




